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EXPEDITED RULES

WASHINGTON CITIZENS' COMMISSION ON
SALARIES FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS

[Filed July 13, 2009, 8:50 a.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  WAC 
183-01-020 Authority and duties, the existing rule reads: 
"The commission's authority and duties are described in Arti-
cle 2, section 1 of the state constitution and in RCW 43.03.-
310."  The reference to Article 2 is incorrect; it should read 
"Article 28, section 1 of the state constitution."

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Carol Sayer, Washington 
Citizens' Commission on Salaries for Elected Officials, P.O. 
Box 43120, Olympia, WA 98504-3120, AND RECEIVED 
BY September 21, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  The reference to 
Article 2, section 1 of the state constitution in WAC 183-01-
020 is incorrect; the correct reference is Article 28, section 1. 
The rule will be changed to show the correct state constitu-
tion citation.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  To correct an error.
Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 43.03.300 

through 43.03.310.
Statute Being Implemented:  RCW 43.03.310.
Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 

court decision.
Name of Proponent:  Washington citizens' commission 

on salaries for elected officials, governmental.
Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 

Implementation and Enforcement:  Carol Sayer, 210 11th 
Avenue S.W., Room 301A, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-5669.

July 13, 2009
Carol Sayer

Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-12-077, 
filed 6/1/09, effective 7/2/09)

WAC 183-01-020  Authority and duties. The commis-
sion's authority and duties are described in Article ((2)) 28, 
section 1 of the state Constitution and in RCW 43.03.310.

WSR 09-15-104
EXPEDITED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
[Filed July 15, 2009, 3:37 p.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  WAC 
458-20-272 Tire fee—Core deposits or credits, this rule 
explains the tire fee imposed under RCW 70.95.510 and the 
tax consequences of battery core charges, deposits, and cred-
its.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Gayle Carlson, Depart-
ment of Revenue, P.O. Box 47453, Olympia, WA 98504-
7453, fax (360) 586-0127, e-mail GayleC@dor.wa.gov, 
AND RECEIVED BY September 21, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  WAC 458-20-272 
(Rule 272) currently explains that the tire fee imposed by 
RCW 70.95.510, which is a $1 fee imposed on each new 
replacement vehicle tire sold at retail, expires June 30, 2010. 
SB 5976 (chapter 261, Laws of 2009), eliminated this statu-
tory expiration date.  The department proposes to amend Rule 
272 to remove the outdated language concerning an expira-
tion date.

Copies of draft rules are available for viewing and print-
ing on our web site at http://dor.wa.gov/content/FindALaw 
OrRule/RuleMaking/agenda.aspx.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  Rule 272 needs to be 
amended so that it is consistent with current law.

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 82.32.300 and 
82.01.060(2).

Statute Being Implemented:  RCW 70.95.630 and 
70.95.640.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 
court decision.

Name of Proponent:  Department of revenue, govern-
mental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: 
Gayle Carlson, 1025 Union Avenue S.E., Suite #544, Olym-
pia, WA, (360) 570-6126; Implementation:  Alan R. Lynn, 
1025 Union Avenue S.E., Suite #544, Olympia, WA, (360) 
570-6125; and Enforcement:  Gilbert Brewer, 1025 Union 
Avenue S.E., Suite #544, Olympia, WA, (360) 570-6147.

July 15, 2009
Alan R. Lynn

Rules Coordinator
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AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-12-017, 
filed 5/26/06, effective 6/26/06)

WAC 458-20-272  Tire fee—Core deposits or credits.
(1) Introduction.  This section describes the tire fee imposed 
under RCW 70.95.510 and the business and occupation 
(B&O), sales, and use tax consequences related to battery 
core charges and core deposits or credits, including the 
exemptions described in RCW 82.08.036 and 82.12.038.

(2) Tire fee.
(a) What is the tire fee?  ((Beginning July 1, 2005, sell-

ers must collect)) The tire fee is a one-dollar fee collected by 
the seller from the buyer on every retail sale of each new 
replacement vehicle tire. If new tires are leased, the fee must 
be collected once at the beginning of the lease.  ((The tire fee 
is effective until June 30, 2010.))

(b) How do I report the tire fee?  A seller must report 
on the excise tax return the number of new replacement vehi-
cle tires sold. Tire sellers may retain ten percent of the fee and 
must remit the remainder to the department of revenue 
(department). As a result, the amount that must be reported 
and paid to the department is the number of new replacement 
vehicle tires sold during the tax reporting period multiplied 
by ninety cents.

(c) What if the seller fails to collect the fee or does not 
pay the fee on time?  The seller is personally liable for pay-
ment of the fee, whether or not the fee is collected from the 
buyer. Any seller who appropriates or converts the fee col-
lected to his or her own use or to any use other than the pay-
ment of the fee by the due date, minus the ten percent 
retained, is guilty of a gross misdemeanor. Interest and penal-
ties apply to late payments. Refer to WAC 458-20-228 
(Returns, ((remittances)) payments, penalties, extensions, 
interest, stay of collection) for more information.

(d) What happens if a buyer fails to pay the fee?  The 
tire fee, until paid by the buyer to the seller or the department, 
is considered a debt from the buyer to the seller.  Any buyer 
who refuses to pay the fee is guilty of a misdemeanor.

(e) Is sales tax imposed on the tire fee?  No. The mea-
sure of the sales tax does not include the tire fee. See RCW 
82.08.036.

(f) Is the ten percent amount retained by the seller 
taxed?  Yes. The seller must report the retained amount as 
gross income under the service and other activities tax classi-
fication on the excise tax return.

(g) What tires are subject to the tire fee?  All new 
replacement vehicle tires are subject to the tire fee. Refer to 
RCW 70.95.030 for the definition of "vehicle."

(i) Examples of vehicles for which new replacement tires 
are subject to the fee include:

(A) Automobiles;
(B) Trucks;
(C) Recreational vehicles;
(D) Trailers;
(E) All-terrain vehicles (ATVs);
(F) Agricultural vehicles, such as tractors or combines;
(G) Industrial vehicles, such as forklifts;
(H) Construction vehicles, such as loaders or graders; 

and
(I) Golf carts.

(ii) Bicycles, wheelbarrows, and hand trucks are exam-
ples of devices to which the new replacement tire fee does not 
apply.

(iii) The tire fee does not apply to the sale of retreaded 
vehicle tires. Nor does it apply to tires provided free of charge 
under the terms of a recall or warranty.

(h) May I refund the fee if a tire is returned?  If a cus-
tomer returns the purchased new tire and the entire selling 
price is refunded to the customer, the one-dollar tire fee is 
likewise refundable. The refunded amount may be claimed 
on the excise tax return in the same manner as refunded sales 
tax. If the seller does not refund the full sales price to the cus-
tomer, the one-dollar fee is not refundable. Refer to WAC 
458-20-108 (Returned goods, allowances, cash discounts) for 
more information.

(i) Does the tire fee apply on sales to the federal gov-
ernment or Indians and Indian tribes?  The tire fee is not 
imposed on sales to the federal government and need not be 
collected by the seller. The tire fee does not apply to sales of 
tires delivered to enrolled members or tribes in "Indian coun-
try." Refer to WAC 458-20-190 and 458-20-192 for more 
information.

(j) If the sale is exempt from sales tax, is the tire fee 
due?  Statutory exemptions from sales tax do not apply to the 
tire fee. The tire fee is due on every retail sale of a new 
replacement tire whether or not sales tax is due.

(3) Core deposits or credits - Battery core charges.
(a) Definitions.  For purposes of this section, the follow-

ing definitions apply:
(i) "Core deposits or credits" means the amount repre-

senting the value of returnable products such as batteries, 
starters, brakes, and other products with returnable value 
added for purposes of recycling or remanufacturing.

(ii) "Battery core charge" refers to a core deposit, not less 
than five dollars, which must by law be retained by the seller 
when a retail purchaser has no used battery to exchange or 
trade in. A buyer may return within thirty days of the pur-
chase with a used battery of equivalent size and claim the 
core charge amount. See RCW 70.95.630 and 70.95.640.

(b) How is tax calculated when the buyer receives a 
core deposit or credit?  Retail sales and use taxes do not 
apply to consideration received in the form of core deposits 
or credits when a purchaser exchanges or trades in a core for 
recycling or remanufacturing. Therefore, the measure of the 
sales or use tax may be reduced by the amount of the core 
deposit or credit. See RCW 82.08.036 and 82.12.038. The 
core deposit and credit exemptions apply only to the retail 
sales and use taxes. There is no equivalent exemption or 
deduction for B&O tax purposes. Therefore, the amount 
reported under the appropriate B&O tax classification must 
include the value of core deposits or credits.

(c) Examples.  This subsection provides examples that 
identify a number of facts and then state a conclusion. These 
examples should be used only as a general guide. The tax 
results of other situations must be determined after a review 
of all of the facts and circumstances.

(i) Example 1.  A customer purchases at retail a new 
replacement battery and reconditioned starter, providing the 
seller with a battery core and a starter core in exchange.  The 
selling price of the new battery, including the battery core 
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charge, is $60.00. The customer is allowed a $5.00 credit 
because a battery core is exchanged, meaning the cost of the 
battery to the customer, excluding sales tax, is $55.00. The 
selling price of the starter is $50.00. The seller allows a $3.00 
credit for the starter core, meaning the cost to the customer, 
excluding sales tax, is $47.00.  Retailing B&O tax is due 
upon the total value of cash plus core value, in this case 
$110.00, or $60.00 plus $50.00.  However, the $8.00 of core 
deposits or credits may be deducted from the measure of the 
retail sales tax under RCW 82.08.036.  Thus, retail sales tax 
is due on $102.00, or $55.00 plus $47.00.

(ii) Example 2.  The seller delivers the starter and bat-
tery cores accepted in the exchange to wholesalers. A starter 
wholesaler issues a refund and a battery wholesaler issues a 
credit memorandum to be applied against future wholesale 
battery purchases. The return of the used products by the auto 
parts store for recycling or remanufacturing and subsequent 
receipt of a refund or credit for the core deposit or credit is 
not considered taxable consideration for purposes of the 
B&O tax.

WSR 09-15-134
EXPEDITED RULES

OFFICE OF
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Insurance Commissioner Matter No. R 2009-09—Filed July 20, 2009, 4:03 
p.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: 
Audited financial statement reporting.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Jim Tompkins, Office of 
Insurance Commissioner, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 
98504-0258, e-mail jimt@oic.wa.gov, AND RECEIVED BY 
September 21, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  The proposed 
rules amend the audited financial statement regulations 
(WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230) to incorporate an 
amendment to the National Association of Insurance Com-
missioner's (NAIC) accreditation standards.  The amend-
ments will improve the commissioner's surveillance of the 
financial condition of insurers by:  (1) Strengthening the 
independence of certified public accountants preparing audits 
of insurer financial statements; (2) establishing more control 
and independence by the audit committee of insurer boards of 
directors; and (3) requiring insurers with $500 million or 
more in direct and assumed premiums to annually prepare a 

management's report of internal control over financial report-
ing.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  Insurers must file audited 
financial statements for each calendar year with the commis-
sioner by June of the following year.  On December 31, 2009, 
an amendment to the NAIC accreditation standard related to 
the audited financial statements filed with the commissioner 
becomes effective.  The new standards apply to calendar year 
2009 statements filed by June 2010 and will improve the 
commissioner's surveillance of the financial condition of 
insurers.

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 48.02.060, 
48.44.050, 48.46.200.

Statute Being Implemented:  RCW 48.05.250, 48.44.-
095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, 48.125.090.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 
court decision.

Name of Proponent:  Mike Kreidler, insurance commis-
sioner, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: 
Jim Tompkins, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 98504-0258, 
(360) 725-7036; Implementation and Enforcement:  Dennis 
Julnes, P.O. Box 40259, Olympia, WA 98504-0259, (360) 
725-7209.

June 20, 2009
Mike Kreidler

Insurance Commissioner

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2006-
06, filed 7/31/06, effective 8/31/06)

WAC 284-07-100  Purpose and scope. (1) The purpose 
of ((this regulation,)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-
230((,)) is to improve the Washington state insurance com-
missioner's surveillance of the financial condition of insurers 
by requiring:

(a) An annual ((examination by independent certified 
public accountants)) audit of ((the)) financial statements 
reporting the financial position and the results of operations 
of insurers by independent certified public accountants;

(b) Communications of Internal Control Related Matters 
Noted in an Audit; and

(c) Management's report of internal control over finan-
cial reporting.

(2) Every insurer, as defined in WAC 284-07-110, shall 
be subject to ((this regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230. Insurers having direct premiums written of less 
than one million dollars in any calendar year and less than 
one thousand policyholders or certificate holders of 
((directly)) direct written policies nation-wide at the end of 
((such)) the calendar year shall be exempt from ((this rule)) 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 for ((such)) the year 
(unless the commissioner makes a specific finding that com-
pliance is necessary for the commissioner to carry out statu-
tory responsibilities) except that insurers having assumed 
premiums pursuant to contracts and/ or treaties of reinsurance 
of one million dollars or more will not be so exempt.

(3) Foreign or alien insurers filing the audited financial 
report((s)) in another state, pursuant to ((such other)) that
state's requirement for filing of audited financial reports,
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which has been found by the commissioner to be substan-
tially similar to the requirements herein, are exempt from 
((this rule)) WAC 284-07-120 through 284-07-210 if:

(a) A copy of the audited financial report, ((Report on 
Significant Deficiencies in)) Communication of Internal 
Control((s)) Related Matters Noted in an Audit, and the 
Accountant(('))s' Letter of Qualifications ((which)) that are 
filed with ((such)) the other state are filed with the NAIC in 
accordance with the filing dates specified in WAC 284-07-
120, 284-07-190 and 284-07-200, respectively (Canadian 
insurers may submit accountant's reports as filed with the 
Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, Can-
ada); and

(b) A copy of any Notification of Adverse Financial 
Condition Report filed with ((such)) the other state is filed 
with the NAIC within the time specified in WAC 284-07-
180.

((Canadian insurers may submit accountants' reports as 
filed with the Canadian Dominion Department of Insur-
ance.))

(4) ((This rule)) Foreign or alien insurers required to file 
management's report of internal control over financial report-
ing in another state are exempt from filing the report in this 
state provided the other state has substantially similar report-
ing requirements and the report is filed with the commis-
sioner of the other state within the time specified.

(5) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 shall not pro-
hibit, preclude, or in any way limit the commissioner from 
ordering, conducting, or performing examinations of insurers 
under the rules, regulations, practices, and procedures of the 
insurance commissioner.

(((5) After January 1, 2003,)) (6) All reports and filings 
required by WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 must be 
filed electronically with the commissioner. Insurers must 
electronically transmit the report or filing in PDF or other for-
mat as noted on the commissioner's web site. The commis-
sioner has the discretion to allow an insurer to file paper cop-
ies of reports and filings required by WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230.  The insurer must demonstrate that fil-
ing in electronic form will create an undue financial hardship 
for the insurer.  Applications for permission to file in hard 
copy must be received by the commissioner at least ninety 
days before the statement of annual statement is due.

(((6))) (7) To comply with statutory or other require-
ments that reports or filings be signed or verified, insurers 
and accountants may:

(a) Use a method of electronic signature verification that 
has been approved by the commissioner; or

(b) File a paper copy of the signature or verification at 
the time of the electronic transmission of the report or filing.

(((7))) (8) The report or filing and the appropriate signa-
tures and/or verifications must both be received to complete a 
filing. The date of receipt of the later of the two parts of the 
filing is considered the receipt date of the report or filing.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2008-
29, filed 3/11/09, effective 4/11/09)

WAC 284-07-110  Definitions. For the purposes of 
((this regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 the 
following definitions shall apply:

(1) (("Audited financial report" means and includes 
those items specified in WAC 284-07-130.

(2))) "Accountant" ((and)) or "independent certified pub-
lic accountant" means an independent certified public 
accountant or accounting firm in good standing with the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
and in all states in which ((they are)) he or she is licensed to 
practice; for Canadian and British companies, the terms mean 
a (("))Canadian-chartered or British-chartered accountant.(("

(3))) (2) An "affiliate" of, or person "affiliated" with, a 
specific person, is a person that directly, or indirectly through 
one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is 
under common control with, the person specified.

(3) "Audit committee" means a committee (or equivalent 
body) established by the board of directors of an entity for the 
purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting 
processes of an insurer or group of insurers, and audits of 
financial statements of the insurer or group of insurers.  The 
audit committee of any entity that controls a group of insurers 
may be deemed to be the audit committee for one or more of 
these controlled insurers solely for the purposes of WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 at the election of the con-
trolling person.  Refer to WAC 284-07-213(5) for exercising 
this election.  If an audit committee is not designated by the 
insurer, the insurer's entire board of directors shall constitute 
the audit committee.

(4) "Audited financial report" means and includes those 
items specified in WAC 284-07-130.

(5) "Group of insurers" means those licensed insurers 
included in the reporting requirements of chapters 48.31B 
and 48.31C RCW, or a set of insurers as identified by man-
agement, for the purpose of assessing the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting.

(6) "Indemnification" means an agreement of indemnity 
or a release ((of)) from liability where the intent or effect is to 
shift or limit in any manner the potential liability of the per-
son or firm for failure to adhere to applicable auditing or pro-
fessional standards, whether or not resulting in part from 
knowing of other misrepresentations made by the insurer or 
its representatives.

(((4))) (7) "Independent board member" has the same 
meaning as described in WAC 284-07-213(3).

(8) "Insurer" has the same meaning as set forth in RCW 
48.01.050. It also includes health care service contractors 
registered under chapter 48.44 RCW, health maintenance 
organizations registered under chapter 48.46 RCW, ((and)) 
fraternal benefit societies registered under chapter 48.36A 
RCW, and self-funded multiple employer welfare arrange-
ments authorized under chapter 48.125 RCW.

(((5))) (9) "Internal control over financial reporting" 
means a process effected by an entity's board of directors, 
management and other personnel designed to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of the financial state-
ments, i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 (2)(b) 
through (g) and includes those policies and procedures that:
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(a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reason-
able detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of assets;

(b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial 
statements, i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 
(2)(b) through (g) and that receipts and expenditures are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of man-
agement and directors; and

(c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposi-
tion of assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements, i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 
(2)(b) through (g).

(10) "NAIC" means the National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners.

(((6))) (11) "Policy holder" shall also mean subscriber.
(12) "SEC" means the United States Securities and 

Exchange Commission.
(13) "Section 404" means Section 404 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC's rules and regulations pro-
mulgated thereunder.

(14) "Section 404 report" means management's report on 
internal control over financial reporting as defined by the 
SEC and the related attestation report of the independent cer-
tified public accountant described in WAC 284-07-110(1).

(15) "SOX compliant entity" means an entity that either 
is required to be compliant with, or voluntarily is compliant 
with, all of the following provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002:

(a) The preapproval requirements of Section 201 (Sec-
tion 10A(i) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934);

(b) The audit committee independence requirements of 
Section 301 (Section 10A (m)(3) of the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934); and

(c) The internal control of financial reporting require-
ments of Section 404 (Item 308 of SEC Regulations S-K).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-120  General requirements related to 
filing and extensions for filing of annual audited financial 
reports and audit committee appointment. (1) All insurers 
shall have an annual audit by an independent certified public 
accountant and shall file an audited financial report with the 
commissioner on or before June 1 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31 immediately preceding. The commissioner may 
require an insurer to file an audited financial report earlier 
than June 1 with ninety days advance notice to the insurer.

(2) Extensions of the June 1 filing date may be granted 
by the commissioner for thirty-day periods upon a showing 
by the insurer and its independent certified public accountant 
of the reasons for requesting ((such)) an extension and deter-
mination by the commissioner of good cause for an exten-
sion. The request for extension must be submitted in writing 
not less than ten days prior to the due date in sufficient detail 
to permit the commissioner to make an informed decision 
with respect to the requested extension.

(3) If an extension is granted in accordance with the pro-
visions in subsection (2) of this section, a similar extension of 
thirty days is granted to the filing of management's report of 
internal control over financial reporting.

(4) Every insurer required to file an annual audited finan-
cial report pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 
shall designate a group of individuals as constituting its audit 
committee, as defined in WAC 284-07-110(3).  The audit 
committee of an entity that controls an insurer may be 
deemed to be the insurer's audit committee for purposes of 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 at the election of the 
controlling person.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2002-
07, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02)

WAC 284-07-130  Contents of annual audited finan-
cial report. (1) The annual audited financial report shall 
report the financial position of the insurer as of the end of the 
most recent calendar year and the results of its operations, 
cash flows, and changes in capital and surplus for the year 
then ended in conformity with statutory accounting practices 
prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the commissioner of 
the state of domicile.

(2) The annual audited financial report shall include the 
following:

(a) Report of independent certified public accountant.
(b) Balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital, and surplus.
(c) Statement of operations.
(d) Statement of cash flows.
(e) Statement of changes in capital and surplus.
(f) Notes to financial statements. These notes shall be 

those required by the appropriate NAIC Annual Statement 
Instructions and NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures 
Manual. The notes shall include a reconciliation of differ-
ences, if any, between the audited statutory financial state-
ments and the annual statement filed pursuant to RCW 
48.05.250, 48.05.073, 48.36A.260, 48.43.050, 48.43.097, 
48.44.095, ((or)) 48.46.080, or 48.125.090 with a written 
description of the nature of these differences.

(g) The financial statements included in the audited 
financial report shall be prepared in a form and using lan-
guage and groupings substantially the same as the relevant 
sections of the annual statement of the insurer filed with the 
commissioner, and the financial statement((s)) shall be com-
parative, presenting the amounts as of December 31 of the 
current year and the amounts as of the immediately preceding 
December 31. However, in the first year in which an insurer 
is required to file an audited financial report, the comparative 
data may be omitted.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 94-2, filed 
1/27/94, effective 2/27/94)

WAC 284-07-140  Designation of independent certi-
fied public accountant. (1) Each insurer required by ((this 
regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 to file an 
annual audited financial report must, within sixty days after 
becoming subject to ((such)) the requirement, register with 
the commissioner in writing the name and address of the 
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independent certified public accountant or accounting firm 
retained to conduct the annual audit ((required by this regula-
tion)) set forth in WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230. 
((Each)) Insurers not retaining an independent certified pub-
lic accountant on the effective date of ((this rule, or the date 
on which this rule becomes applicable to it,)) WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230 shall register the name and address 
of their retained independent certified public accountant not 
less than ((two)) six months before the date when the first 
audited financial report is to be filed.

(2) The insurer shall obtain a letter from the accountant, 
and file a copy with the commissioner stating that the accoun-
tant is aware of the provisions of the Washington state insur-
ance code, Title 48 RCW, and the rules and regulations 
((thereunder,)) that relate to accounting and financial matters 
and affirming that the accountant will express his or her opin-
ion on the financial statements in terms of their conformity to 
the statutory accounting practices prescribed or otherwise 
permitted by the commissioner, specifying such exceptions 
as ((are believed)) he or she may believe appropriate.

(3) If an accountant who was the accountant for the 
immediately preceding filed audited financial report is dis-
missed or resigns, the insurer shall, within five business days, 
notify the commissioner of this event. The insurer shall also 
furnish the commissioner with a separate letter within ten 
business days of the above notification stating whether in the 
twenty-four months preceding such event there were any dis-
agreements with the former accountant on any matter of 
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclo-
sure, or auditing scope or procedure((,)); which disagree-
ments, if not resolved to the satisfaction of the former 
accountant, would have caused him or her to make reference 
to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with 
his or her opinion. The disagreements required to be reported 
in response to this section include both those resolved to the 
former accountant's satisfaction and those not resolved to the 
former accountant's satisfaction. Disagreements contem-
plated by this section are those that occur at the decision-
making level, i.e., between personnel of the insurer responsi-
ble for presentation of its financial statements and personnel 
of the accounting firm responsible for rendering its report. 
The insurer shall also in writing request ((such)) the former 
accountant to furnish a letter addressed to the insurer stating 
whether the accountant agrees with the statements contained 
in the insurer's letter and, if not, stating the reasons for ((dis-
agreement)) which he or she does not agree; and the insurer 
shall furnish such responsive letter from the former accoun-
tant to the commissioner together with its own.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2008-
29, filed 3/11/09, effective 4/11/09)

WAC 284-07-150  Qualifications of independent cer-
tified public accountant. (1) The commissioner shall not 
recognize ((any)) a person or firm as a qualified independent 
certified public accountant if the person or firm:

(a) Is not in good standing with the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and in all states in 
which the accountant is licensed to practice, or, for a Cana-
dian or British company, that is not a chartered accountant; or

(b) Has either directly or indirectly entered into an agree-
ment of indemnity or release from liability (collectively 
referred to as an indemnification) with respect to the audit of 
the insurer.

(2) Except as otherwise provided ((herein)) in WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230, the commissioner shall rec-
ognize an independent certified public accountant ((shall be 
recognized)) as qualified as long as he or she conforms to the 
standards of his or her profession, as contained in the Code of 
Professional Ethics of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants (AICPA) and ((the code of professional 
conduct)) statutes (chapter 18.04 RCW) and rules (chapter 4-
25 WAC) of the ((state of)) Washington state board of ((pub-
lic)) accountancy, or similar ((applicable code)) rules. 

(3) A qualified independent certified public accountant 
may enter into any agreement with an insurer to have disputes 
relating to an audit resolved by mediation or arbitration. 
However, in the event of a delinquency proceeding com-
menced against the insurer under chapters 48.31 and 48.99 
RCW, the mediation or arbitration provisions shall operate at 
the option of the statutory successor.

(4) ((No)) (a) The lead (or coordinating) partner ((or 
other person responsible for rendering a report)) (having pri-
mary responsibility for the audit) may not act in that capacity 
for more than ((seven)) five consecutive years. ((Following 
any period of service such)) The person shall be disqualified 
from acting in that or a similar capacity for the same com-
pany or its insurance subsidiaries or affiliates for a period of 
((two)) five consecutive years. An insurer may make applica-
tion to the commissioner for relief from the above rotation 
requirement on the basis of unusual circumstances.  This 
application must be made at least thirty days before the end of 
the calendar year. The commissioner may consider the fol-
lowing factors in determining if the relief should be granted:

(((a))) (i) Number of partners, expertise of the partners, 
or the number of insurance clients in the currently registered 
firm;

(((b))) (ii) Premium volume of the insurer; and
(((c))) (iii) Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer 

transacts business.
((The requirements of this subsection shall become 

effective two years after the enactment of this regulation.))
(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, 

the approval for relief from WAC 284-07-150 (4)(a) with the 
states that it is licensed in or doing business in and with the 
NAIC.  If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with 
the NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic 
format acceptable to the NAIC.

(5) The commissioner shall not recognize as a qualified 
independent certified public accountant, nor accept any 
annual audited financial report, prepared in whole or in part 
by, any natural person who:

(a) Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a violation of 
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 
U.S.C.Sections 1961-1968, or any dishonest conduct or prac-
tices under federal or state law;

(b) Has been found to have violated the insurance laws 
of this state with respect to any previous reports submitted 
under ((this rule)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230; or
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(c) Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of failing to 
detect or disclose material information in previous reports 
filed under the provisions of ((this rule)) WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230.

(6) The commissioner as provided in RCW 48.02.060 
may hold a hearing to determine whether ((a)) an independent
certified public accountant is qualified and, considering the 
evidence presented, may rule that the accountant is not qual-
ified for purposes of expressing his or her opinion on the 
financial statements in the annual audited financial report 
made pursuant to ((this regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230 and require the insurer to replace the 
accountant with another whose relationship with the insurer 
is qualified within the meaning of ((this regulation)) WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230.

(7)(a) The commissioner shall not recognize as a quali-
fied independent certified public accountant, nor accept an 
annual audited financial report, prepared in whole or in part 
by an accountant who provides to an insurer, contemporane-
ously with the audit, the following nonaudit services:

(i) Bookkeeping or other services related to the account-
ing records or financial statements of the insurer;

(ii) Financial information systems design and implemen-
tation;

(iii) Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions, or 
contribution-in-kind reports;

(iv) Actuarially oriented advisory services involving the 
determination of amounts recorded in the financial state-
ments.  The accountant may assist an insurer in understand-
ing the methods, assumptions and inputs used in the determi-
nation of amounts recorded in the financial statements only if 
it is reasonable to conclude that the services provided will not 
be subject to audit procedures during an audit of the insurer's 
financial statements.  An accountant's actuary may also issue 
an actuarial opinion or certification (opinion) on an insurer's 
reserves if the following conditions have been met:

(A) Neither the accountant nor the accountant's actuary 
has performed any management functions or made any man-
agement decisions;

(B) The insurer has competent personnel (or engages a 
third-party actuary) to estimate the reserves for which man-
agement takes responsibility; and

(C) The accountant's actuary tests the reasonableness of 
the reserves after the insurer's management has determined 
the amount of the reserves;

(v) Internal audit outsourcing services;
(vi) Management functions or human resources;
(vii) Broker or dealer, investment adviser, or investment 

banking services;
(viii) Legal services or expert services unrelated to the 

audit; or
(ix) Any other services that the commissioner deter-

mines, by rule, are impermissible.
(b) In general, the principles of independence with 

respect to services provided by the qualified independent cer-
tified public accountant are largely predicated on three basic 
principles, violations of which would impair the accountant's 
independence.  The principles are that the accountant cannot 
function in the role of management, cannot audit his or her 

own work, and cannot serve in an advocacy role of the 
insurer.

(8) Insurers having direct written and assumed premiums 
of less than one hundred million dollars in any calendar year 
may request an exemption from subsection (7)(a) of this sec-
tion.  The insurer shall file with the commissioner a written 
statement discussing the reasons why the insurer should be 
exempt from these provisions.  If the commissioner finds, 
upon review of this statement, that compliance with WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 would constitute a financial 
or organizational hardship upon the insurer, an exemption 
may be granted.

(9) A qualified independent certified public accountant 
who performs the audit may engage in other nonaudit ser-
vices, including tax services, that are not described in subsec-
tion (7)(a) of this section or that do not conflict with subsec-
tion (7)(b) of this section, only if the activity is approved in 
advance by the audit committee, in accordance with subsec-
tion (10) of this section.

(10) All auditing services and nonaudit services pro-
vided to an insurer by the qualified independent certified 
public accountant of the insurer shall be preapproved by the 
audit committee.  The preapproval requirement is waived 
with respect to nonaudit services if the insurer is a SOX com-
pliant entity or a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary 
of a SOX compliant entity or:

(a) The aggregate amount of all such nonaudit services 
provided to the insurer constitutes not more than five percent 
of the total amount of fees paid by the insurer to its qualified 
independent certified public accountant during the fiscal year 
in which the nonaudit services are provided;

(b) The services were not recognized by the insurer at the 
time of the engagement to be nonaudit services; and

(c) The services are promptly brought to the attention of 
the audit committee and approved prior to the completion of 
the audit by the audit committee or by one or more of the 
members of the audit committee who are the members of the 
board of directors to whom authority to grant such approvals 
has been delegated by the audit committee.

(11) The audit committee may delegate to one or more 
designated members of the audit committee the authority to 
grant the preapprovals required by subsection (10) of this 
section.  The decisions of any member to whom this authority 
is delegated shall be presented to the full audit committee at 
each of its scheduled meetings.

(12)(a) The commissioner shall not recognize an inde-
pendent certified public accountant as qualified for a particu-
lar insurer if a member of the board, president, chief execu-
tive officer, controller, chief financial officer, chief account-
ing officer, or any other person serving in an equivalent 
position for that insurer, was employed by the independent 
certified public accountant and participated in the audit of 
that insurer during the one-year period preceding the date that 
the most current statutory opinion is due.  This section shall 
only apply to partners and senior managers involved in the 
audit.  An insurer may make application to the commissioner 
for relief from the above requirement on the basis of unusual 
circumstances.

(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, 
the approval for relief from (a) of this subsection with the 
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states that it is licensed in or doing business in and the NAIC. 
If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with the 
NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic for-
mat acceptable to the NAIC.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-160  Consolidated or combined audits.
An insurer may make written application to the commis-
sioner for approval to file audited consolidated or combined 
financial statements in lieu of separate annual audited finan-
cial statements if the insurer is part of a group of insurance 
companies which utilizes a pooling or one hundred percent 
reinsurance agreement that affects the solvency and integrity 
of the insurer's reserves and ((such)) the insurer cedes all of 
its direct and assumed business to the pool. In such cases, a 
columnar consolidating or combining worksheet shall be 
filed with the report, as follows:

(1) Amounts shown on the consolidated or combined 
audited financial report shall be shown on the worksheet((.));

(2) Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shall 
be stated separately((.));

(3) Noninsurance operations may be shown on the work-
sheet on a combined or individual basis((.));

(4) Explanations of consolidating and eliminating entries 
shall be included((.)); and 

(5) A reconciliation shall be included of any differences 
between the amounts shown in the individual insurer col-
umns of the worksheet and comparable amounts shown on 
the annual statements of the insurers.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-170  Scope of ((examination)) audit and 
report of independent certified public accountant. Finan-
cial statements furnished pursuant to WAC 284-07-130 
hereof shall be examined by an independent certified public 
accountant. The ((examination)) audit of the insurer's finan-
cial statements shall be conducted in accordance with gener-
ally accepted auditing standards.  In accordance with AU 
Section 319 of the Professional Standards of the AICPA, 
Consideration of Internal Control in a Financial Statement 
Audit, the independent certified public accountant should 
obtain an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan 
the audit.  To the extent required by AU 319, for those insur-
ers required to file a management's report of internal control 
over financial reporting pursuant to WAC 284-07-217, the 
independent certified public accountant should consider (as 
that term is defined in Statement of Auditing Standards 
(SAS) No.  102, Defining Professional Requirements in 
Statements on Auditing Standards, or its replacement) the 
most recently available report in planning and performing the 
audit of the statutory financial statements.  Consideration 
((should also)) shall be given to ((such other)) the procedures 
illustrated in the Financial Condition Examiner's Handbook 
promulgated by the National Association of Insurance Com-
missioners as the independent certified public accountant 
deems necessary.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 94-2, filed 
1/27/94, effective 2/27/94)

WAC 284-07-180  Notification of adverse financial 
condition. (1) The insurer required to furnish the annual 
audited financial report shall require the independent certi-
fied public accountant to report, in writing, within five busi-
ness days to the board of directors or its audit committee any 
determination by the independent certified public accountant 
that the insurer has materially misstated its financial condi-
tion as reported to the commissioner as of the balance sheet 
date currently under ((examination)) audit or that the insurer 
does not meet the minimum capital and surplus or net worth 
requirements of the Washington state insurance code, Title 
48 RCW, as of that date. An insurer ((who)) that has received 
a report pursuant to this subsection shall forward a copy of 
the report to the commissioner within five business days of 
receipt of ((such)) the report and shall provide the indepen-
dent certified public accountant making the report with evi-
dence of the report being furnished to the commissioner. If 
the independent certified public accountant fails to receive 
((such)) the evidence within the required five business day 
period, the independent certified public accountant shall fur-
nish to the commissioner a copy of its report within the next 
five business days.

(2) No independent public accountant shall, by virtue of 
((this regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, be 
liable in any manner to any person for any statement made in 
connection with subsection (1) of this section if ((such)) the
statement is made in good faith in compliance with subsec-
tion (1) of this section.

(3) If the accountant, subsequent to the date of the 
audited financial report filed pursuant to ((this regulation)) 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, becomes aware of 
facts which might have affected his or her report, the com-
missioner notes the obligation of the accountant ((should)) to
take such action as ((is)) prescribed in Volume 1, Section AU 
561 of the Professional Standards of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) or its replacement.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-190  ((Report on significant deficiencies 
in)) Communication of internal control((s)) related mat-
ters noted in an audit. (1) In addition to the annual audited 
financial ((statements)) report, each insurer shall furnish the 
commissioner with a written ((report prepared by the accoun-
tant describing significant deficiencies)) communication as 
to any unremediated material weaknesses in ((the insurer's)) 
its internal controls ((structure)) over financial reporting
noted ((by the accountant)) during the audit.  Such communi-
cation shall be prepared by the accountant within sixty days 
after the filing of the annual audited financial report, and 
shall contain a description of any unremediated material 
weakness (as the term material weakness is defined by SAS 
No. 60, Communication of Internal Control ((Structure)) 
Related Matters Noted in an Audit (((AU Section 325 of the 
Professional Standards of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants) requires an accountant to communicate 
significant deficiencies (known as "reportable conditions") 
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noted during a financial statement audit to the appropriate 
parties within an entity. No report should be issued if the 
accountant does not identify significant deficiencies. If sig-
nificant deficiencies are noted, the written report shall be 
filed annually by the insurer with the commissioner within 
sixty days after the filing of the annual audited financial state-
ments)), or its replacement) as of December 31 immediately 
preceding (so as to coincide with the audited financial report 
discussed in WAC 284-07-120(1)) in the insurer's internal 
control over financial reporting noted by the accountant dur-
ing the course of their audit of the financial statements.  If no 
unremediated material weaknesses were noted, the communi-
cation should so state.

(2) The insurer is required to provide a description of 
remedial actions taken or proposed to correct ((significant 
deficiencies)) unremediated material weaknesses, if such 
actions are not described in the accountant's ((report)) com-
munication.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-200  Accountant's letter of qualifica-
tions. The accountant shall furnish the insurer in connection 
with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual audited 
financial report, a letter stating:

(1) That the accountant is independent with respect to the 
insurer and conforms to the standards of his or her profession 
as contained in the Code of Professional Ethics and pro-
nouncements of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA) and the statutes (chapter 18.04 RCW) 
and rules (chapter 4-25 WAC) of ((professional conduct of)) 
the Washington state board of ((public)) accountancy, or sim-
ilar ((applicable)) rules((.));

(2) The background and experience in general, and the 
experience in audits of insurers of the staff assigned to the 
engagement and whether each is an independent certified 
public accountant. Nothing within ((this rule)) WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230 shall be construed as prohibiting the 
accountant from utilizing such staff as he or she deems appro-
priate where use is consistent with the standards prescribed 
by generally accepted auditing standards((.));

(3) That the accountant understands the annual audited 
financial report and ((the)) his or her opinion thereon will be 
filed in compliance with ((this rule)) WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230 and that the commissioner will be rely-
ing on this information in the monitoring and regulation of 
the financial position of insurers((.));

(4) That the accountant consents to the requirements of 
WAC 284-07-210 and that the accountant consents and 
agrees to make available for review by the commissioner, or 
((his)) the commissioner's designee or appointed agent, the 
workpapers, as defined in WAC 284-07-210((.));

(5) A representation that the accountant is properly 
licensed by an appropriate state licensing authority and is a 
member in good standing in the American Institute of Certi-
fied Public Accountants((.)) (AICPA); and

(6) A representation that the accountant is in compliance 
with the requirements of WAC 284-07-150.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-210  Definition, availability, and main-
tenance of ((CPA)) independent certified public accoun-
tants workpapers. (1) Workpapers are the records kept by 
the independent certified public accountant of the procedures 
followed, the tests performed, the information obtained, and 
the conclusions reached pertinent to the ((examination)) 
accountant's audit of the financial statements of an insurer. 
Workpapers, accordingly, may include audit planning docu-
mentation, work programs, analyses, memoranda, letters of 
confirmation and representation, abstracts of company docu-
ments and schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained 
by the independent certified public accountant in the course 
of ((the examination)) his or her audit of the financial state-
ments of an insurer and which support the accountant's opin-
ion ((thereof)).

(2) Every insurer required to file an audited financial 
report pursuant to ((this regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230, shall require the accountant to make 
available for review by the commissioner's examiners, all 
workpapers prepared in the conduct of the ((examination)) 
accountant's audit and any communications related to the 
audit between the accountant and the insurer, at the offices of 
the insurer, at the commissioner's office or at any other rea-
sonable place designated by the commissioner. The insurer 
shall require that the accountant retain the audit workpapers 
and communications until the commissioner has filed a report 
on examination covering the period of the audit but no longer 
than seven years from the date of the audit report.

(3) In the conduct of the aforementioned periodic review 
by the commissioner's examiners, it shall be agreed that pho-
tocopies of pertinent audit workpapers may be made and 
retained by the commissioner's office. Such reviews by the 
commissioner's examiners shall be considered investigations 
and all working papers and communications obtained during 
the course of such investigations shall be afforded the same 
confidentiality as other examination workpapers generated 
by the insurance commissioner.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-07-213  Requirements for audit commit-
tees. This section shall not apply to foreign or alien insurers 
licensed in this state or an insurer that is a SOX compliant 
entity or a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of a 
SOX compliant entity.

(1) The audit committee shall be directly responsible for 
the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of 
any accountant (including resolution of disagreements 
between management and the accountant regarding financial 
reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing the audited 
financial report or related work pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230.  Each accountant shall report directly to 
the audit committee.

(2) Each member of the audit committee shall be a mem-
ber of the board of directors of the insurer or a member of the 
board of directors of an entity elected pursuant to subsection 
(5) of this section and WAC 284-07-110(3).
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(3) In order to be considered independent for purposes of 
this section, a member of the audit committee may not, other 
than in his or her capacity as a member of the audit commit-
tee, the board of directors, or any other board committee, 
accept any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee 
from the entity or be an affiliated person of the entity or any 
subsidiary thereof.  However, if law requires board participa-
tion by otherwise nonindependent members, that law shall 
prevail and the members may participate in the audit commit-
tee and be designated as independent for audit committee 
purposes, unless they are an officer or employee of the 
insurer or one of its affiliates.

(4) If a member of the audit committee ceases to be inde-
pendent for reasons outside the member's reasonable control, 
that person, with notice by the responsible entity to the state, 
may remain an audit committee member for the responsible 
entity until the earlier of the next annual meeting of the 
responsible entity or one year from the occurrence of the 
event that caused the member to be no longer independent.

(5) To exercise the election of the controlling person to 
designate the audit committee for purposes of WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230, the ultimate controlling person 
shall provide written notice to the commissioners of the 
affected insurers.  Notification shall be made timely prior to 
the issuance of the statutory audit report and include a 
description of the basis for the election.  The election can be 
changed through notice to the commissioner by the insurer, 
which shall include a description of the basis for the change. 
The election shall remain in effect for perpetuity, until 
rescinded.

(6)(a) The audit committee shall require the accountant 
that performs for an insurer any audit required by WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230 to timely report to the audit com-
mittee in accordance with the requirements of SAS 61, Com-
munication with Audit Committees, or its replacement, 
including:

(i) All significant accounting policies and material per-
mitted practices;

(ii) All material alternative treatments of financial infor-
mation within statutory accounting principles that have been 
discussed with management officials of the insurer, ramifica-
tions of the use of the alternative disclosures and treatments, 
and the treatment preferred by the accountant; and

(iii) Other material written communications between the 
accountant and the management of the insurer, such as any 
management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences.

(b) If an insurer is a member of an insurance or health 
carrier holding company system, the reports required by (a) 
of this subsection may be provided to the audit committee on 
an aggregate basis for insurers in the holding company sys-
tem, provided that any substantial differences among insurers 
in the system are identified to the audit committee.

(7) The proportion of independent audit committee 
members shall meet or exceed the following criteria:

Prior Calendar Year Direct Written and Assumed Premiums

$0 - $300,000,000
Over $300,000,000 - 

$500,000,000 Over $500,000,000
No minimum require-
ments.  See also Note 
A and B.

Majority (50% or 
more) of members 
shall be independent.  
See also Note A and B.

Supermajority of 
members (75% or 
more) shall be inde-
pendent.  See also 
Note A.

Note A: The commissioner has authority by state law to require the 
entity's board to enact improvements to the independence of 
the audit committee membership if the insurer is in a RBC 
action level event, meets one or more of the standards of an 
insurer deemed to be in hazardous financial condition, or 
otherwise exhibits qualities of a troubled insurer.

Note B: All insurers with less than five hundred million dollars in 
prior year direct written and assumed premiums are encour-
aged to structure their audit committees with at least a 
supermajority of independent audit committee members.

Note C: Prior calendar year direct written and assumed premiums 
shall be the combined total of direct premiums and assumed 
premiums from nonaffiliates for the reporting entities.

(8) An insurer with direct written and assumed premi-
ums, excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop 
Insurance Corporation and federal flood program, less than 
five hundred million dollars may make application to the 
commissioner for a waiver from this section's requirements 
based upon hardship.  The insurer shall file, with its annual 
statement filing, the approval for relief from this section with 
the states that it is licensed in or doing business in and the 
NAIC.  If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with 
the NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic 
format acceptable to the NAIC.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-07-215  Conduct of insurers in connection 
with the preparation of required reports and documents.
(1) No director or officer of an insurer shall, directly or indi-
rectly:

(a) Make or cause to be made a materially false or mis-
leading statement to an accountant in connection with any 
audit, review or communication required under WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230; or

(b) Omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state, 
any material fact necessary in order to make statements 
made, in light of the circumstances under which the state-
ments were made, not misleading to an accountant in connec-
tion with any audit, review or communication required under 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230.

(2) No officer or director of an insurer, or any other per-
son acting under the direction thereof, shall directly or indi-
rectly take any action to coerce, manipulate, mislead or fraud-
ulently influence any accountant engaged in the performance 
of an audit pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-
230 if that person knew or should have known that the action, 
if successful, could result in rendering the insurer's financial 
statements materially misleading.

(3) For purposes of subsection (2) of this section, actions 
that, "if successful, could result in rendering the insurer's 
financial statements materially misleading" include, but are 
not limited to, actions taken at any time with respect to the 
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professional engagement period to coerce, manipulate, mis-
lead or fraudulently influence an accountant:

(a) To issue or reissue a report on an insurer's financial 
statements that is not warranted in the circumstances (due to 
material violations of statutory accounting principles pre-
scribed by the commissioner, generally accepted auditing 
standards, or other professional or regulatory standards);

(b) Not to perform audit, review or other procedures 
required by generally accepted auditing standards or other 
professional standards;

(c) Not to withdraw an issued report; or
(d) Not to communicate matters to an insurer's audit 

committee.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-07-217  Management's report of internal 
control over financial reporting. (1) Every insurer required 
to file an audited financial report pursuant to WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230 that has annual direct written and 
assumed premiums, excluding premiums reinsured with the 
Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and federal flood pro-
gram, of five hundred million dollars or more shall prepare a 
report of the insurer's or group of insurers' internal control 
over financial reporting, as these terms are defined in WAC 
284-07-110.  The report shall be filed with the commissioner 
along with the Communications of Internal Control Related 
Matters Noted in an Audit described under WAC 284-07-
190.  Management's report of internal control over financial 
reporting shall be as of December 31 immediately preceding.

(2) Notwithstanding the premium threshold in subsec-
tion (1) of this section, the commissioner may require an 
insurer to file management's report of internal control over 
financial reporting if the insurer is in any RBC level event, or 
meets any one or more of the standards of an insurer deemed 
to be in hazardous financial condition as defined in WAC 
284-16-310.

(3) An insurer or group of insurers that is:
(a) Directly subject to Section 404;
(b) Part of a holding company system whose parent is 

directly subject to Section 404;
(c) Not directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX com-

pliant entity; or
(d) A member of a holding company system whose par-

ent is not directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX compli-
ant entity may file its or its parent's Section 404 Report and 
an addendum in satisfaction of this section's requirement pro-
vided that those internal controls of the insurer or group of 
insurers having a material impact on the preparation of the 
insurer's or group of insurers' audited statutory financial 
statements (those items included in WAC 284-07-130 (2)(b) 
through (g)) were included in the scope of the Section 404 
Report.  The addendum shall be a positive statement by man-
agement that there are no material processes with respect to 
the preparation of the insurer's or group of insurers' audited 
statutory financial statements (those items included in WAC 
284-07-130 (2)(b) through (g)) excluded from the Section 
404 Report.  If there are internal controls of the insurer or 
group of insurers that have a material impact on the prepara-
tion of the insurer's or group of insurers' audited statutory 

financial statements and those internal controls were not 
included in the scope of the Section 404 Report, the insurer or 
group of insurers may either file:

(i) A WAC 284-07-217 report; or
(ii) The Section 404 Report and a WAC 284-07-217 

report for those internal controls that have a material impact 
on the preparation of the insurer's or group of insurers' 
audited statutory financial statements not covered by the Sec-
tion 404 Report.

(4) Management's report of internal control over finan-
cial reporting shall include:

(a) A statement that management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting;

(b) A statement that management has established inter-
nal control over financial reporting and an assertion, to the 
best of management's knowledge and belief, after diligent 
inquiry, as to whether its internal control over financial 
reporting is effective to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial statements in accordance with 
statutory accounting principles;

(c) A statement that briefly describes the approach or 
processes by which management evaluated the effectiveness 
of the internal control over financial reporting;

(d) A statement that briefly describes the scope of work 
that is included and whether any internal controls were 
excluded;

(e) Disclosure of any unremediated material weaknesses 
in the internal control over financial reporting identified by 
management as of December 31 immediately preceding. 
Management is not permitted to conclude that the internal 
control over financial reporting is effective to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial state-
ments in accordance with statutory accounting principles if 
there is one or more unremediated material weakness in its 
internal control over financial reporting;

(f) A statement regarding the inherent limitations of 
internal control systems; and

(g) Signatures of the chief executive officer and the chief 
financial officer (or equivalent position/title).

(5) Management shall document and make available 
upon financial condition examination the basis upon which 
its assertions, required in subsection (4) of this section, are 
made.  Management may base its assertions, in part, upon 
review, monitoring and testing of internal controls under-
taken in the normal course of its activities.

(a) Management shall have discretion as to the nature of 
the internal control framework used, and the nature and 
extent of documentation, in order to make its assertion in a 
cost-effective manner and, as such, may include assembly of 
or reference to existing documentation.

(b) Management's report on internal control over finan-
cial reporting, required by subsection (1) of this section, and 
any documentation provided in support thereof during the 
course of a financial condition examination, shall, to the 
extent provided by law, be kept confidential by the commis-
sioner.
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AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 94-2, filed 
1/27/94, effective 2/27/94)

WAC 284-07-220  Exemptions and effective dates. (1) 
Upon written application of any insurer, the commissioner 
may grant an exemption from compliance with ((this regula-
tion)) any and all provisions of WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 if the commissioner finds, upon review of the 
application, that compliance with WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 would constitute a financial or organizational 
hardship upon the insurer. An exemption may be granted at 
any time and from time to time for a specified period or peri-
ods. Within ten days from a denial of an insurer's written 
request for an exemption from ((this regulation)) WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230, ((such)) the insurer may request 
in writing a hearing on its application for an exemption. 
((Such)) The hearing shall be held in accordance with the 
rules and procedures pertaining to administrative hearings.

(2) Domestic insurers retaining a certified public 
accountant on the effective date of ((this regulation)) WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 who ((qualifies)) qualify as 
independent shall comply with ((this regulation)) WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230 for the year ending December 
31, 1992, and each year thereafter unless the commissioner 
permits otherwise.

(3) Domestic insurers not retaining a certified public 
accountant on the effective date of ((this regulation)) WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 who qualify as independent 
may meet the following schedule for compliance unless the 
commissioner permits otherwise.

(a) As of December 31, 1992, file with the commis-
sioner((:

(i) Report of independent certified public accountant;
(ii) Audited balance sheet;
(iii) Notes to audited balance sheet)) an audited financial 

report.
(b) For the year ending December 31, 1992, and each 

year thereafter, ((such)) the insurers shall file with the com-
missioner all reports and communications required by ((this 
regulation)) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-210.

(4) Foreign insurers shall comply with ((this regulation)) 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 for the year ending 
December 31, 1992, and each year thereafter, unless the com-
missioner permits otherwise.

(5) ((An insurer who on December 31, 1993, was not 
subject to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, and who 
on that date retained a certified public accountant, who is 
qualified as independent, shall comply with this regulation 
for the year ending December 31, 1993, and each year there-
after unless the commissioner permits by order, bulletin, let-
ter, or otherwise, for a specific insurer or any one or more 
insurers.)) The requirements of WAC 284-07-150(4) shall be 
in effect for audits of the year beginning January 1, 2010 and 
thereafter.

(6) ((An insurer who on December 31, 1993, was not 
subject to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, and who 
on that date did not retain a certified public accountant, who 
is qualified as independent, shall meet the following mini-
mum schedule for compliance unless the commissioner per-
mits by order, bulletin, letter, or otherwise, for a specific 
insurer or any one or more insurers.

(a) As of December 31, 1993, file with the commissioner 
by June 1, 1994:

(i) Report of independent certified public accountant;
(ii) Audited balance sheet;
(iii) Notes to audited balance sheet.
(b) And, for the year ending December 31, 1994, and 

each year thereafter, such insurers shall file with the commis-
sioner all reports required by this regulation.)) The require-
ments of WAC 284-07-213 are to be in effect January 1, 
2010.  An insurer or group of insurers that is not required to 
have independent audit committee members or only a major-
ity of independent audit committee members (as opposed to a 
supermajority) because the total written premium and 
assumed premium is below the threshold and subsequently 
becomes subject to one of the independence requirements 
due to change in premiums shall have one year following the 
year the threshold is exceeded (but not later than January 1, 
2010) to comply with the independence requirements.  Like-
wise, an insurer that becomes subject to one of the indepen-
dence requirements as a result of business combination shall 
have one calendar year following the date of acquisition or 
combination to comply with the independence requirements.

(7) The requirements of WAC 284-07-150 (7) through 
(12), 284-07-190, 284-07-215, and 284-07-217 are effective 
beginning with the reporting period ending December 31, 
2010 and each year thereafter.  An insurer or group of insur-
ers that is not required to file a report because the total written 
premium is below the threshold and subsequently becomes 
subject to the reporting requirements shall have two years 
following the year the threshold is exceeded (but not earlier 
than December 31, 2010) to file a report.  Likewise, an 
insurer acquired in a business combination shall have two 
calendar years following the date of acquisition or combina-
tion to comply with the reporting requirements.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 92-10, 
filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92)

WAC 284-07-230  Canadian and British companies.
(1) In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the annual 
audited financial report shall be defined as the annual state-
ment of total business on the form filed by ((such)) the com-
panies with their ((domiciliary)) supervision authority duly 
audited by an independent chartered accountant.

(2) For ((such)) the insurers, the letter required in WAC 
284-07-140(2) shall state that the accountant is aware of the 
requirements relating to the annual audited ((statement)) 
report filed with the commissioner pursuant to WAC 284-07-
120 and shall affirm that the opinion expressed is in confor-
mity with ((such)) those requirements.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-07-240  Severability provision. If any provi-
sion of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 or its applica-
tion to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the 
remainder of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 or the 
application of the provision to other persons or circumstances 
is not affected.
Expedited [ 12 ]
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EXPEDITED RULES

GROWTH MANAGEMENT
HEARINGS BOARDS

[Filed July 21, 2009, 11:28 a.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  Chap-
ter 242-04 WAC, Public records (all sections).

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
Rules Coordinator, Office of the Growth Management Hear-
ings Boards, P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, e-
mail Juliet@cps.gmhb.wa.gov, AND RECEIVED BY no 
later than 5 p.m. on September 30, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  Purpose of these 
amendments is to permanently amend certain sections of 
chapter 242-04 WAC which relate to an emergency rule-
making order published in WSR 09-13-019.  These amended 
sections reflect the consolidation of the administrative func-
tions of the three growth management hearings boards into a 
single office and are for the rules pertaining to public records. 
Amendments are needed to provide accurate contact informa-
tion and clarity as to procedures given the administrative con-
solidation.

(1) Update mailing and physical addresses for the office 
of the growth management hearings boards.

(2) Update web site contact information for all three 
boards.

(3) Update e-mail contact information for the Eastern 
board.

(4) Add a definition for the term, office of the growth 
management hearings boards.

(5) Consistency of terminology for public records officer 
and clarity as to responsibility of this position.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  These amendments 
implement the requirements or reductions in appropriations 
enacted with the recently adopted budget for upcoming fiscal 
year.  The legislature's biennium appropriate [appropriation] 
reflects an approximate 16% reduction in the boards' budget, 
with budget notes specifically contemplating the consolida-
tion of the boards into a single location.  The boards' rules 
related to public records must be amended to reflect this con-
solidation and create needed efficiency along with clarifica-
tion for the public.  (Exempt from CR-101 requirement based 
on RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b), (d); permitted to be filed under 
CR-105 based on RCW 34.05.353(c)).

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 36.70.270(7).
Statute Being Implemented:  Chapter 36.70A RCW.
Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 

court decision.

Name of Proponent:  Growth management hearings 
board (Eastern, Western, and Central Puget Sound), govern-
mental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 
Implementation and Enforcement:  Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, (425) 441-8250.

July 21, 2009
James J. McNamara

Chair, Rules Committee

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-010  Purpose. The purpose of this chapter 
is to ensure compliance by each individual board ((and)), the 
joint boards, and the office of the growth management hear-
ings boards with the provisions of chapter 42.17 RCW, and in 
particular with RCW 42.17.250 through 42.17.340, dealing 
with public records.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 94-23-112, 
filed 11/22/94, effective 12/23/94)

WAC 242-04-020  Definitions. (1) "Board" means the 
Eastern Washington, Western Washington, or Central Puget 
Sound growth management hearings board. Each is a quasi-
judicial body created pursuant to chapter 36.70A RCW. 
Where appropriate the term board also refers to the staff and 
employees of each board.

(2) "Joint boards" means the three independent boards 
meeting or acting jointly.

(3) "Office of the growth management hearings boards" 
means the administrative office of the three growth manage-
ment hearings boards established in RCW 36.70A.250.

(4) "Public record" means any writing containing infor-
mation relating to the conduct of government or the perfor-
mance of any governmental or proprietary function prepared, 
owned, used, or retained by any state or local agency regard-
less of physical form or characteristics.

(((4))) (5) "Writing" means handwriting, typewriting, 
printing, photostating, photographing, and every other means 
of recording any form of communication or representation, 
including, but not limited to, letters, words, pictures, sounds, 
or symbols, or combination thereof, and all papers, maps, 
magnetic or paper tapes, photographic films and prints, 
motion pictures, film and video recordings, magnetic or 
punched cards, discs, drums, diskettes, sound recordings, and 
other documents including existing data compilations from 
which information may be obtained or translated.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 00-09-094, 
filed 4/19/00, effective 5/20/00)

WAC 242-04-030  Description of organization and 
public meetings. (1) Each board is an independent agency of 
the state of Washington, composed of three members 
appointed by the governor. Each board elects an administra-
tive chairperson from its members at least annually.

(2) The administrative chairpersons constitute the 
administrative committee of the joint boards. ((The adminis-
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trative committee elects an administrative chairperson from 
its members at least annually.))

(3) Regular meetings of each board will be held at ((its 
principal)) the office of the growth management hearings 
boards or other designated location at the following times:

(a) Eastern Washington board - on the first Wednesday 
of each month at 10:00 a.m.

(b) Western Washington board - on the second Wednes-
day of each month at 11:00 a.m.

(c) Central Puget Sound board - on the first Monday of 
each month at 10:00 a.m.

(4) The joint boards, comprised of the members of the 
three individual boards, shall meet at least annually at a time 
and location to be announced.

(5) The office of the growth management hearings 
boards provides for the administrative operations of the three 
individual boards and the joint boards.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-10-030, 
filed 4/28/08, effective 5/29/08)

WAC 242-04-050  Communications with each board 
or the joint boards. (1) All communications with a board, 
including but not limited to the submission of materials per-
taining to its operations and/ or administration or enforcement 
of chapter 42.17 RCW and these rules, requests for copies of 
each board's decisions and other matters, shall be addressed 
to the appropriate ((board's office)) board as follows:

(((a) Eastern Washington Growth
Management Hearings Board
15 West Yakima Avenue, Suite 102
Yakima, Washington 98902
509-574-6960
509-574-6964 fax
e-mail:  AAndreas@EW.GMHB.WA.GOV
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/eastern

(b) Western Washington Growth
Management Hearings Board
319 - 7th Avenue S.E. (as of June 2008)
Olympia, WA 98501
P.O. Box 40953
Olympia, Washington 98504-0953
(360) 664-8966
(360) 664-8975 fax
e-mail:  western@ww.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/western

(c) Central Puget Sound Growth
Management Hearings Board
800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2356
Seattle, Washington 98104
(206) 389-2625
(206) 389-2588 fax
e-mail:  central@cps.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/central)) 

The Office of the Growth Management Hearings Boards
(Insert name of appropriate board)
319 - 7th Avenue S.E.
Olympia, WA 98501
P.O. Box 40953

Olympia, WA 98504-0953
360-586-0260
360-664-6975 fax
e-mail:  eastern@ew.gmhb.wa.gov
western@ww.gmhb.wa.gov
central@cps.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhba.wa.gov

(2) All communications with the joint boards shall be 
addressed ((in care of the Western Washington board)) as 
noted in subsection (1) of this section.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-060  Public records officer. (1) The 
administrative chairperson ((of each)) responsible for man-
agement of the office of the growth management hearings
boards, or his/her designee, shall be in charge of the public 
records for all three boards and for the joint boards.

(2) ((The administrative chairperson of the joint boards, 
or designee, shall be in charge of the public records for the 
joint boards.

(3))) Such person((s)) shall be responsible for implemen-
tation of these rules and regulations regarding release of pub-
lic records, and generally assuring compliance with the pub-
lic records disclosure requirements of chapter 42.17 RCW, 
and in particular RCW 42.17.250 through 42.17.340.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-070  Office hours. Public records shall be 
available for inspection and copying during the customary 
office hours of ((each)) the office of the growth management 
hearings boards. For the purposes of this chapter, the custom-
ary office hours shall be from 8:00 a.m. to noon and from 
1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding 
legal holidays.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-080  Requests for public records. In 
accordance with the provisions of chapter 42.17 RCW, that 
agencies prevent unreasonable invasions of privacy, protect 
public records from damage or disorganization, and prevent 
excessive interference with essential functions of the agency, 
public records may be inspected or copied, or copies of such 
records may be obtained, by members of the public upon 
compliance with the following procedures:

(1) A request shall be made in writing upon a form pre-
scribed by ((a board or)) the joint boards which shall be avail-
able at ((its)) the office of the growth management hearings 
boards. A completed form shall be presented to ((that board)) 
the public records officer or to any staff member ((of the 
board's staff)) at the office of the growth management hear-
ings boards during customary office hours. The request shall 
include the following information:

(a) The name and address of the person requesting the 
record and the organization represented, if any;
Expedited [ 14 ]
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(b) The time of day and calendar date on which the 
request was made;

(c) A description of the material requested;
(d) If the matter requested is referenced within the cur-

rent index maintained by the public records officer, a refer-
ence to the requested record as it is described in such current 
index;

(e) If the requested matter is not identifiable by reference 
to a current index, an appropriate identification of the record 
requested.

(2) In all cases in which a member of the public is mak-
ing a request, it shall be the obligation of the ((board)) public 
records officer or staff member to whom the request is made 
to assist the member of the public in appropriately identifying 
the public record requested.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-090  Responses to requests for public 
records. Within five business days of receiving a public 
record request, ((a board)) the public records officer must 
respond by either:

(1) Providing the record;
(2) Acknowledging that the ((board)) public records 

officer has received the request for an individual board or the 
joint boards and providing a reasonable estimate of the time 
that the ((board)) public records officer will require to 
respond to the request. Additional time required to respond to 
a request may be based upon the need to clarify the intent of 
the request, to locate and assemble the information requested, 
to notify third persons or agencies affected by the request, or 
to determine whether any of the information requested is 
exempt and that a denial should be made as to all or part of 
the request. In acknowledging receipt of a public record 
request that is unclear, ((a board)) the public records officer
may ask the requestor to clarify what information the 
requestor is seeking. If the requestor fails to clarify the 
request, the ((board)) public records officer need not respond 
to it; or

(3) Denying the public record request.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 98-01-144, 
filed 12/19/97, effective 1/20/98)

WAC 242-04-100  Copying. No fee shall be charged for 
the inspection of public records. ((Each board)) The public 
records officer, on behalf of either an individual board or the 
joint boards, shall charge a reasonable fee for providing cop-
ies of public records and for use of ((each board's)) the office 
of the growth management hearings boards' photocopy 
equipment. ((Each board)) The public records officer may 
charge a reasonable fee for electronic facsimile transmissions 
(fax). The charge is the amount necessary to reimburse 
((each)) the office of the growth management hearings
boards for its actual costs incident to such copying or trans-
mission.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-110  Exemptions. (1) ((Each)) The public 
records officer, on behalf of each individual board or the joint
boards, reserves the right to determine that a public record 
requested in accordance with the procedures outlined in 
WAC 242-04-080 is exempt under the provisions of RCW 
42.17.310 including but not limited to the following:

(a) Personal information in files maintained for members 
and employees of ((a)) an individual board, the joint boards, 
or the office of the growth management hearings boards, to 
the extent that disclosure would violate their right to privacy;

(b) Preliminary drafts, notes, recommendations, and 
intra-agency memoranda in which opinions are expressed or 
policies formulated or recommended, except that a specific 
record shall not be exempt when publicly cited by an agency 
in connection with any agency action;

(c) All applications for public employment, including the 
names of applicants, resumes, and other related materials 
submitted with respect to an applicant;

(d) The residential addresses and residential telephone 
numbers of employees or volunteers of a public agency 
which are held by the agency in personnel records, employ-
ment or volunteer rosters, or mailing lists of employees or 
volunteers.

(2) Pursuant to RCW 42.17.260, ((each board)) the pub-
lic records officer reserves the right to delete identifying 
details when ((it)) he/she makes available or publishes any 
public records, in all cases when there is reason to believe 
that disclosure of such details would be an invasion of per-
sonal privacy protected by chapter 42.17 RCW. ((Each 
board)) The public records officer will fully justify such dele-
tion in writing.

(3) All public records otherwise exempt by law shall be 
considered exempt under the provision of these rules.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-120  Review of denials of public records 
requests. Any person who objects to a denial of a public 
records request or who objects to the reasonableness of the 
estimate of the time ((a board)) the public records officer
requires to respond to a public records request, shall petition 
the superior court in the county in which the record is main-
tained under the provisions of RCW 42.17.340.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-130  Protection of public records. In 
order to protect the public records in the custody of each indi-
vidual board ((or)), the joint boards, or the office of the 
growth management hearings boards, the following guide-
lines shall be followed by any person inspecting such public 
records:

(1) No public records shall be removed from the office;
(2) Inspection of any public record shall be conducted in 

the presence of ((a board member)) the public records officer
or his/her designee;
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(3) No public record may be marked or defaced in any 
manner during inspection;

(4) Public records which are maintained in the file jacket, 
or in chronological order, may not be dismantled except for 
purpose of copying, and then only by ((a board member)) the 
public records officer or his/her designee;

(5) Access to file cabinets, shelves, vaults, and other 
storage locations is restricted to the public records officer,
board members, and staff.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 92-21-034, 
filed 10/15/92, effective 10/15/92)

WAC 242-04-140  Records index. (1) Index. ((Each 
board and the joint boards)) The public records officer has 
available to all persons a current index which provides iden-
tifying information as to records which have been issued, 
adopted, or promulgated since May 15, 1992, as follows:

(a) Final orders, including concurring and dissenting 
opinions, made in the adjudication of cases;

(b) Those statements of policy and interpretations of pol-
icy, statute, and the Constitution which have been adopted by 
((a)) an individual board and/or the joint boards;

(c) Administrative staff manuals and instructions to staff 
that affect a member of the public;

(d) Individual board and joint board planning policies 
and goals, and interim and final planning decisions;

(e) Factual staff reports and studies, a consultant's factual 
reports and studies, scientific reports and studies, and any 
other factual information derived from tests, studies, reports, 
or surveys, whether conducted by public employees or oth-
ers; and

(f) Correspondence, and materials referred to therein, by 
and with ((a)) an individual board, the joint boards, or the 
office of the growth management hearings boards relating to 
any regulations, supervisory or enforcement responsibilities 
of ((a)) the growth management hearings boards, where ((a)) 
an individual board determines or is asked to determine the 
rights of the state, the public, a subdivision of state govern-
ment, or of any private party.

(2) Availability. The current index promulgated by 
((each board and the joint boards)) the public records officer
shall be available for inspection by all persons under the same 
rules and on the same conditions as are applied to public 
records available for inspection.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 94-23-112, 
filed 11/22/94, effective 12/23/94)

WAC 242-04-150  Adoption of form. Each individual
board and the joint boards adopts the use by all persons 
requesting inspection and/ or copies of records the form set 
out below, entitled "Request for inspecting and/ or copying 
public records."

We have received your request for inspection of and/ or 
copies of our public records. Please complete this form and 
return it with the amount required, if applicable. We will for-
ward the requested copies to you as soon as we receive this 
completed form with payment.

Return to:

(((name and address of applicable board)))
PUBLIC RECORDS OFFICER

OFFICE OF THE GROWTH MANAGEMENT HEARINGS BOARDS
(INSERT APPROPRIATE BOARD'S NAME)

REQUEST FOR INSPECTING AND/OR COPYING PUBLIC 
RECORDS

Date:
Name:
Address:
Day Phone Number:
Description of Record(s) Requested:

I certify that the information obtained through this request 
for public records will be used in compliance with chapter 
42.17 RCW.

Signature

Number of Copies
Number of Pages
Per Page Cost
Total Charge

$
$

WSR 09-15-157
EXPEDITED RULES

GROWTH MANAGEMENT
HEARINGS BOARDS

[Filed July 21, 2009, 12:07 p.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  Chap-
ter 242-02 WAC, Practice and procedures, WAC 242-02-
070, 242-02-074, and 242-02-075.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
Rules Coordinator, Office of the Growth Management Hear-
ings Boards, P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, e-
mail Juliet@cps.gmhb.wa.gov, AND RECEIVED BY no 
later than 5 p.m. on September 30, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  Purpose of these 
amendments is to permanently amend certain sections of 
chapter 242-02 WAC which relate to an emergency rule-
making order published in WSR 09-13-017.  These amended 
sections reflect the consolidation of the administrative func-

 

Expedited [ 16 ]



Washington State Register, Issue 09-15 WSR 09-15-157
tions of the three growth management hearings boards into a 
single office.  Amendments are needed to provide facilitated 
administrative functions and are related to internal operations 
of the boards.

(1) Modifying quorum voting procedures for administra-
tive business of the growth management hearings boards.

(2) Update location information for regular meetings of 
individual growth management hearings boards.

(3) Modifying the notification period for a special meet-
ing of the boards.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  These amendments 
implement the requirements or reductions in appropriations 
enacted with the recently adopted budget for upcoming fiscal 
year.  The legislature's biennium appropriate [appropriation] 
reflects an approximate 16% reduction in the boards' budget, 
with budget notes specifically contemplating the consolida-
tion of the boards into a single location.  The boards' rules of 
practice and procedures must be amended to reflect this con-
solidation and create needed efficiency along with clarifica-
tion for potential parties and the public.  Amendments are 
needed to update procedures related to administrative deci-
sions and meetings (regular and special) of the growth man-
agement hearings boards.  (Exempt from CR-101 require-
ment based on RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b), (d), filed under CR-
105 based on RCW 34.05.353 (a) and (c)).

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 36.70.270(7).
Statute Being Implemented:  Chapter 36.70A RCW.
Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 

court decision.
Name of Proponent:  Growth management hearings 

boards (Eastern, Western, and Central Puget Sound), govern-
mental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 
Implementation and Enforcement:  Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, (425) 441-8250.

July 21, 2009
James J. McNamara

Chair, Rules Committee

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 03-15-047, 
filed 7/11/03, effective 8/11/03)

WAC 242-02-070  Quorum. (1) Joint boards. For the 
purpose of adopting, amending, or repealing these rules or 
transacting other administrative business, at least two mem-
bers of each board ((must concur)) shall constitute a quorum 
of the joint boards.  A quorum being present, any action may 
be taken upon the vote of the majority of the joint board 
members.

(2) Individual board. For purposes of making orders or 
decisions or transacting other official administrative business 
for an individual board, two members of a board shall consti-
tute a quorum and may act even though one position on the 
board is vacant. One member or designated hearing examiner 
may hold hearings and take testimony. The findings of such 
member or hearing examiner shall not become final until 
approved by a majority of the board. A board member who 
does not attend a hearing shall review a transcript or record-
ing of the hearing before signing the decision.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-10-029, 
filed 4/28/08, effective 5/29/08)

WAC 242-02-074  Regular meetings. (1) Regular 
meetings of each board will be held at ((its principal)) the
office of the growth management hearings boards, or a desig-
nated location at the following times:

(a) Eastern Washington board - on the first Wednesday 
of each month at 10:00 a.m. or following any scheduled hear-
ing on that date.

(b) Western Washington board - on the second Wednes-
day of each month at 11:00 a.m. or following any scheduled 
hearing on that date.

(c) Central Puget Sound board - on the first Monday of 
each month at 10:00 a.m. or following any scheduled hearing 
on that date.

(2) The joint boards shall meet annually at a time and 
location to be announced.

(3) An individual board shall make available the location 
of such a meeting if it is not to be held at the office of the 
growth management hearings boards.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-21-015, 
filed 10/3/08, effective 11/3/08)

WAC 242-02-075  Special meeting. (1) A special meet-
ing of the joint boards may be called at the request of any 
three of the nine board members. To call a special meeting, a 
written notice of the meeting shall be posted on the boards' 
web site and personally e-mailed to:

(a) Each member of the boards; and
(b) Each general circulation newspaper, television or 

radio station which has on file with the boards a written 
request to be notified of special meetings.

(2) The written notice shall state the date and time of the 
meeting, and shall specify the business to be transacted by the 
boards. The boards will not take final action on any matter 
that is not specified in the written notice. 

(3) Notices of special meetings shall be sent by e-mail:
(a) ((Ten days)) One day (twenty-four hours) before the 

scheduled meeting; except
(b) When a special meeting is called to consider rule 

changes pursuant to chapter 34.05 RCW, the notice shall be 
sent at least twenty days prior to the meeting; and except

(c) In the event of an emergency requiring board action, 
the notice and timing requirements may be waived as pro-
vided in RCW 42.30.080.

(4) The special meeting shall be chaired by one of the 
board members who called the meeting. 

(5) A special meeting may be held by telephone confer-
ence call.

(6) Two members of each board will constitute a quorum 
for a special meeting.

(7) Members of the public may attend a special meeting 
by appearing at any of the three board offices, or the location 
of the special meeting, at the date and time set for the meet-
ing.
[ 17 ] Expedited
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EXPEDITED RULES

GROWTH MANAGEMENT
HEARINGS BOARDS

[Filed July 21, 2009, 12:09 p.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  Chap-
ter 242-02 WAC, Practice and procedures, WAC 242-02-
040, 242-02-072, and 242-02-834.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
Rules Coordinator, Office of the Growth Management Hear-
ings Boards, P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, e-
mail Juliet@cps.gmhb.wa.gov, AND RECEIVED BY no 
later than 5 p.m. on September 30, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  Purpose of these 
amendments is to permanently amend certain sections of 
chapter 242-02 WAC which relate to an emergency rule-
making order published in WSR 09-13-017.  These amended 
sections reflect the consolidation of the administrative func-
tions of the three growth management hearings boards into a 
single office.  Amendments are needed to provide accurate 
contact information.

(1) Update mailing and physical addresses for the East-
ern and Central Puget Sound boards.

(2) Update web site contact information for all three 
boards.

(3) Update e-mail contact information for the Eastern 
board.

(4) Add a definition for the term, office of the growth 
management hearings boards.

(5) Update location for retention of boards' final deci-
sions and orders.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  These amendments 
implement the requirements or reductions in appropriations 
enacted with the recently adopted budget for upcoming fiscal 
year.   The legislature's biennium appropriate [appropria-
tions] reflects an approximate 16% reduction in the boards' 
budget, with budget notes specifically contemplating the con-
solidation of the boards into a single location.  The boards' 
rules of practice and procedures must be amended to reflect 
this consolidation and create needed efficiency along with 
clarification for potential parties and the public.  Amend-
ments are needed to update procedures related to administra-
tive decisions and meetings (regular and special) of the 
growth management hearings boards.  (Exempt from CR-101 
requirement based on RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b), (d); filed as 
CR-105 based on RCW 34.05.353 (1)(c)).

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 36.70.270(7).
Statute Being Implemented:  Chapter 36.70A RCW.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 
court decision.

Name of Proponent:  Growth management hearings 
boards (Eastern, Western, and Central Puget Sound), govern-
mental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 
Implementation and Enforcement:  Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, (425) 441-8250.

July 21, 2009
James J. McNamara

Chair, Rules Committee

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 98-01-144, 
filed 12/19/97, effective 1/20/98)

WAC 242-02-040  Definitions. As used in this title, the 
following terms shall have the following meaning:

(1) "Act" means the Growth Management Act, chapter 
36.70A RCW, and subsequent amendments.

(2) "Board" means the Eastern Washington, Western 
Washington or Central Puget Sound growth management 
hearings board.

(3) "Final decision" means:
(a) Any final order as provided in RCW 36.70A.300; or
(b) Any other written finding, determination or order of 

the board which finally determines a legal right, duty, or 
other legal interest of the parties in the case and which clearly 
states such written finding, determination or order that it is a 
final decision subject to appeal to superior court.

(4) "Hearing examiner" means an authorized agent of a 
board who has a demonstrated knowledge of land use plan-
ning and law, appointed to assist the board in the perfor-
mance of its hearing function as delegated by the board as 
provided by the act.

(5) "Joint boards" means the three independent boards 
meeting or acting jointly.

(6) "Office of the growth management hearings boards" 
means the administrative office of the three growth manage-
ment hearings boards established in RCW 36.70A.250.

(7) "Participant" means any person with standing to chal-
lenge a legislative action as set forth in RCW 36.70A.330(2).

(((7))) (8) "Party" means any person named in the cap-
tion of a case before a board.

(((8))) (9) "Person" means any individual, partnership, 
corporation, association, state agency, governmental subdivi-
sion or unit, or public or private organization or entity of any 
character.

(((9))) (10) "Petitioner" means a person who appeals any 
matter or who brings a petition for rule making to the board. 
A petitioner is a party to a case before the board.

(((10))) (11) "Presiding officer" means any member of a 
board, or a hearing examiner, who is assigned to conduct a 
conference or hearing as directed by a board. The presiding 
officer shall be designated pursuant to WAC 242-02-521 and 
have authority as provided by WAC 242-02-522.

(((11))) (12) "Publication" means:
(a) For a city, the date the city publishes the ordinance or 

summary of the ordinance adopting a comprehensive plan, 
development regulations or subsequent amendment, as is 
required to be published, or the date the city publishes notice 
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that the shoreline master program or amendment has been 
approved or disapproved by the department of ecology;

(b) For a county, the date the county publishes the notice 
that it has adopted a comprehensive plan, development regu-
lations or other enactments, or subsequent amendments pur-
suant to RCW 36.70A.290(2), or the date the county pub-
lishes notice that the shoreline master program or amendment 
has been approved or disapproved by the department of ecol-
ogy.

(((12))) (13) "Respondent" means a person who is named 
as a responding party in any petition for review before a 
board.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-10-029, 
filed 4/28/08, effective 5/29/08)

WAC 242-02-072  ((Principal)) Board offices. ((The 
principal offices of each board are as follows:

(1) Eastern Washington Growth
Management Hearings Board
15 West Yakima Avenue, Suite 102
Yakima, Washington 98902
509-574-6960
509-574-6964 fax

e-mail:  AAndreas@EW.GMHB.WA.GOV
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/eastern

(2) Western Washington Growth
Management Hearings Board
319 - 7th Avenue S.E. (as of June 2008)
Olympia, WA 98501
P.O. Box 40953
Olympia, Washington 98504-0953
(360) 664-8966
(360) 664-8975 fax
e-mail:  western@ww.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/western

(3) Central Puget Sound Growth
Management Hearings Board
800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2356
Seattle, Washington 98104
(206) 389-2625
(206) 389-2588 fax
e-mail:  central@cps.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov/central)) 

(1) The administration of the three boards is consolidated 
in one office - the office of the growth management hearings 
boards:

Office of the Growth Management Hearings Boards
319 - 7th Avenue S.E.
Olympia, WA 98501
P.O. Box 40953
Olympia, WA 98504-0953
360-586-0260
360-664-8975 Fax
e-mail:  eastern@ew.gmhb.wa.gov
e-mail:  western@wwgmhb.wa.gov
e-mail:  centralia@cps.gmhb.wa.gov
web site:  www.gmhb.wa.gov

(2) The filing of all petitions, briefings, exhibits, and 
other documents related to any proceeding before an individ-
ual board shall be made to the office of the growth manage-
ment hearings boards, with specific indication of the appro-
priate board's name - Eastern, Western, or Central Puget 
Sound.

Reviser's note:  RCW 34.05.395 requires the use of underlining and 
deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules.  The rule published 
above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use 
of these markings.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 03-15-047, 
filed 7/11/03, effective 8/11/03)

WAC 242-02-834  Publication of final decision and 
orders. Copies of all final decisions and orders are available 
((from the)) for an individual board that entered the decision 
and order from the office of the growth management hearings 
boards. The growth management hearings boards web site is 
www.gmhb.wa.gov. Each board posts its decisions within its 
individual portion of the web site and maintains a digest of its 
decisions.

WSR 09-15-165
EXPEDITED RULES

GROWTH MANAGEMENT
HEARINGS BOARDS

[Filed July 21, 2009, 12:21 p.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  Chap-
ter 242-02 WAC, Practice and procedures, WAC 242-02-
052, 242-02-080, 242-02-140, 242-02-210, 242-02-230, 242-
02-240, 242-02-250, 242-02-292, 242-02-320, 242-02-330, 
242-02-340, 242-02-530, and 242-02-534.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 
OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
Rules Coordinator, Office of the Growth Management Hear-
ings Boards, P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, e-
mail Juliet@cps.gmhb.wa.gov, AND RECEIVED BY no 
later than 5 p.m. on October 5, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  Purpose of these 
amendments is to permanently amend certain sections of 
chapter 242-02 WAC which relate to an emergency rule-
making order published in WSR 09-13-017.  These amended 
sections reflect the consolidation of the administrative func-
tions of the three growth management hearings boards into a 
single office.  Amendments are needed to provide accurate, 
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clarifying information and facilitate efficiency of document 
filing based on this consolidation.

(1) Add language related to the office of the growth man-
agement hearings boards.

(2) Clarifying form and size of documents.
(3) Require electronic mail addresses be included in doc-

uments filed with the boards.
(4) Allow for the filing and/or service of papers, includ-

ing petitions for review, to be made by electronic mail.
Reasons Supporting Proposal:  These amendments 

implement the requirements or reductions in appropriations 
enacted with the recently adopted budget for upcoming fiscal 
year.  The legislature's biennium appropriate [appropriations] 
reflects an approximate 16%  reduction in the boards' budget, 
with budget notes specifically contemplating the consolida-
tion of the boards into a single location.  The boards' rules of 
practice and procedures must be amended to reflect this con-
solidation and create needed efficiency along with clarifica-
tion for potential parties and the public.  Amendments are 
needed to update procedures related to administrative deci-
sions and meetings (regular and special) of the growth man-
agement hearings boards.  (Exempt from CR-101 require-
ment based on RCW 34.05.310 (4)(g)(i), (d); filed as CR-105 
based on RCW 34.05.353 (a) and (c)).

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 36.70.270(7).
Statute Being Implemented:  Chapter 36.70A RCW.
Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 

court decision.
Name of Proponent:  Growth management hearings 

boards (Eastern, Western, and Central Puget Sound), govern-
mental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 
Implementation and Enforcement:  Julie Ainsworth-Taylor, 
P.O. Box 40953, Olympia, WA 98504-0953, (425) 441-8250.

July 2009
James J. McNamara

Chair, Rules Committee
Reviser's note:  The material contained in this filing exceeded the 

page-count limitations of WAC 1-21-040 for appearance in this issue of the 
Register.  It will appear in the 09-16 issue of the Register.

WSR 09-15-196
EXPEDITED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
[Filed July 22, 2009, 11:43 a.m.]

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information:  WAC 
246-830-460 Continuing education (CE) requirement—
Amount, this rule should be repealed.  It is now obsolete 
because the language has been added to WAC 246-830-475.

NOTICE
THIS RULE IS BEING PROPOSED UNDER AN 

EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS THAT WILL 
ELIMINATE THE NEED FOR THE AGENCY TO HOLD 
PUBLIC HEARINGS, PREPARE A SMALL BUSINESS 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT, OR PROVIDE 
RESPONSES TO THE CRITERIA FOR A SIGNIFICANT 
LEGISLATIVE RULE.  IF YOU OBJECT TO THIS USE 

OF THE EXPEDITED RULE-MAKING PROCESS, YOU 
MUST EXPRESS YOUR OBJECTIONS IN WRITING 
AND THEY MUST BE SENT TO Kris Waidely, Program 
Manager, Department of Health, Board of Massage, P.O. Box 
47867, Olympia, WA 98504-7867, AND RECEIVED BY 
September 21, 2009.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, 
Including Any Changes in Existing Rules:  This rule should 
be repealed because the language has been added to WAC 
246-830-475, which was effective June 7, 2009.  The changes 
are intended to provide clear continuing education require-
ments for massage practitioners and consolidate all continu-
ing education requirements into one rule section.

Reasons Supporting Proposal:  The entire language from 
WAC 246-830-460 is obsolete.  All the continuing education 
requirements are now under WAC 246-830-475 Continuing 
education requirements, which was filed with the code 
reviser's office on May 7, 2009, and became effective June 7, 
2009.

RCW 34.05.353 (2)(d) authorizes an expedited repeal of 
this rule because other rules of the agency govern the same 
activity of the rule, making the rule redundant.

Statutory Authority for Adoption:  RCW 18.108.025.
Statute Being Implemented:  RCW 18.108.025.
Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state 

court decision.
Name of Proponent:  Department of health, board of 

massage, governmental.
Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, 

Implementation and Enforcement:  Kris Waidely, Program 
Manager, 310 Israel Road S.E., Tumwater, WA 98501, (360) 
236-4847.

July 22, 2009
Kris Waidely

Program Manager

REPEALER
The following section of the Washington Administrative 

Code is repealed:

WAC 246-830-460 Continuing education 
requirement—Amount.
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